








Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2015/16Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 190,198.00 239,469.00 21,906.27 209,913.80 7,648.93 Teachers Salaries

1120 2,100.00 2,100.00 4,040.00 1,940.00-Certificated Substitutes

1200 65,054.00 67,139.00 5,997.31 54,477.79 6,663.90 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 77,905.00 84,290.00 6,414.08 70,554.87 7,321.05 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 335,257.00 392,998.00 34,317.66 338,986.46 19,693.88 

2100 79,742.00 85,492.00 11,424.27 74,713.80 646.07-Instructional Aides' Salaries

2105 29.00 29.00 .00 Per Diem - Same Day Travel

2120 700.00 700.00 178.05 521.95 Classified Substitutes

2200 10,530.00 22,977.00 1,273.91 9,989.24 11,713.85 Classified Support Salaries

2220 500.00 117.47 117.47-Classified Substitute Salaries

2300 101,353.00 101,200.00 8,386.20 92,578.20 235.60 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 130,378.00 136,009.00 11,310.51 123,070.12 1,628.37 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 9,915.00 13,638.00 6,034.50 7,603.50 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 333,118.00 360,045.00 32,394.89 306,710.38 20,939.73 

3101 41,393.00 3,682.28 36,140.14 1,570.58 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 36,635.00 34,119.00 48.17 594.48 33,476.35 STRS Classified Positions

3201 81.74 81.74-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 54,763.00 53,619.00 4,437.06 48,334.18 847.76 PERS Classified Positions

3301 68.00 68.00 49.60 18.40 OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 19,466.00 20,723.00 1,919.54 18,053.04 750.42 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,681.00 5,527.00 483.57 4,772.83 270.60 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,667.00 4,948.00 455.46 4,307.31 185.23 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 88,592.00 80,780.00 7,768.62 72,570.34 441.04 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 73,935.00 72,266.00 6,503.17 69,579.37 3,816.54-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3403 1,000.00 1,000.00 ACA FEES-CERT

3404 1,000.00 1,000.00 ACA FEES-CLASS

3501 234.00 199.00 17.16 169.60 12.24 SUI Certificated

3502 234.00 179.00 16.20 151.55 11.25 SUI Classified

3601 10,976.00 14,455.00 1,266.23 12,497.47 691.30 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 10,939.00 12,922.00 1,192.55 11,278.16 451.29 Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 305,190.00 343,198.00 27,790.01 278,579.81 36,828.18 

4100 410.00 410.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 444.00 444.00 Library and Reference Material

4300 13,306.00 25,315.00 2,265.03 16,273.47 6,776.50 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,300.00 2,972.00 787.53 1,133.33 1,051.14 Custodial Grounds Supplies

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2016, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  7 2016  3:45PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2105
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3403
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3404
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2015/16Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 550.35 1,033.29 583.64-Office Supplies

4350 5,500.00 5,500.00 1,361.00 1,244.23 2,894.77 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 8,459.00 11,823.00 4,200.62 7,622.38 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 29,565.00 47,464.00 4,963.91 23,884.94 18,615.15 

5100 39,626.00 42,000.00 3,500.00 18,991.96 19,508.04 Subagreements for Services

5200 24,854.00 38,889.00 1,742.44 18,852.06 18,294.50 Travel and Conference

5300 17,870.00 18,370.00 2,360.32 10,437.00 5,572.68 Dues and Membership

5400 9,300.00 9,300.00 7,961.00 1,339.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 1,493.29 7,138.38 568.33 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,600.00 2,600.00 95.46 658.46 1,846.08 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 8,400.00 8,400.00 8,400.00 Professional Consulting

5801 35,500.00 25,500.00 1,842.50 23,657.50 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 593.00 613.00 170.00 155.00 288.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 378.76 1,121.24 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 365,709.00 459,991.00 90,750.25 234,897.30 134,343.45 Contracted Services

5899 1,833.20 572.39 2,405.59-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 1,600.00 1,600.00 795.22 804.78 Communications

Total for Object 5000 518,252.00 619,463.00 102,323.72 303,422.51 213,716.77 

6200 30,032.00 30,032.00 30,032.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 13,100.00 13,100.00 6,263.90 6,836.10 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 43,132.00 43,132.00 .00 6,263.90 36,868.10 

7141 42,224.00 33,607.00 33,607.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 42,224.00 33,607.00 .00 .00 33,607.00 

380,268.81 1,606,738.00 1,839,907.00 201,790.19 1,257,848.00 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 270,349.00 270,349.00 307,493.25 37,144.25-Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 47,709.00 47,709.00 54,263.52 6,554.52-Other Authorized Interfund Tra

43,698.77-318,058.00 318,058.00 .00 361,756.77 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

336,570.04 1,924,796.00 2,157,965.00 201,790.19 1,619,604.77 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2016, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  7 2016  3:45PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=83865&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


SCOE  
 Minutes 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

May 10, 2016 

5:00 pm CLOSED SESSION 

6:00 pm REGULAR SESSION 

Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

 President HALL called the meeting to order at 5:04 pm. 

 

B.  ROLL CALL 

 

 PRESENT: Ms.  Patty Hall, President   

   Mr.  Mike Moore, Vice President  

    Mr.  Allen Wright, Clerk 

   Ms.  Sharon Dryden, Member 

 

 ABSENT:     Mr. Tim Driscoll, Member 

 

 VACANT:     None 

 

C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA   

 MOORE/WRIGHT 

 4/0  

 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION 

 

 At this time, the meeting opened for any public comments regarding the Closed Session item and closed 

without comment. 

 

E. CLOSED SESSION  at 5:05 pm 

MOORE/DRYDEN 

4/0 

 

 The Board of Trustees, Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant and Business Manager Rose Asquith 

moved into Closed Session to discuss the following item: 

 

1. Government Code §54957.6, Conference with Labor Negotiators 

   Agency Negotiator for the Board:  Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

   Employee Organizations:   

   Represented Employees:      Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association 

   Unrepresented Employees:   Classified Employees 

      Confidential Employees 

      Administrative Employees 

 

F. END CLOSED SESSION at 5:45 pm.  BREAK.  

 

G.  RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 6 pm. 

 

H. FLAG SALUTE 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 10, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

2 

I. REPORT OUT – The closed session was for discussion purposes only, no action was taken.  The Board 

gave recommendation to the Superintendent regarding Certificated Employees. 

 

J. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

  

1. Mr. Danny Birkholz, Project Developer, SmartWatt Energy, Inc., gave a presentation on 

Proposition 39 Energy Conservation and Energy Efficiency opportunities for the district. 

 

2. Superintendent’s Report 

 

a. California County Superintendents Educational Services Association (CCSESA) 

Quarterly Meeting 

b. Hillary Lozano appointed Instructional Aide, .9 FTE, Resource Program, Downieville 

Elementary School 

 

3. Business Report 

 

a.   Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/15 to 4/30/16 

 

4. Staff Reports (5 minutes) 

  

5. SPTA Report (5 minutes) 

 

6. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) 

 

7. Public Comment opened at 6:42 pm and closed without comment. 

 

K. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held April 12, 2016 

2. Approval of bill warrants for month of April 2016 

3. Review of BP/AR/E 5116.1, Intradistrict Open Enrollment (The Board shall annually review 

this policy.  Education Code 35160.5, 48980) 

 DRYDEN/WRIGHT 

 4/0 

 

L. ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. New Business 

 

PUBLIC HEARING-LCAP  

 

1516-78 Public Hearing and Presentation of the 2016-17 Local Control and Accountability  

  Plan opened at 6:43 pm to address any public comments and questions and closed at 6:43 

  pm without comment. (Stakeholder comments were provided at the Community Forums  

  held at each site.) 

  



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 10, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

3 

PUBLIC HEARING-SCOE Budget 

 

1516-79 Public Hearing and Presentation of the 2016-17 Proposed Budget opened at 6:44 pm to  

  inform the public and to receive and address public comments on how the budget relates to 

  and funds the LCAP.  

  DRYDEN:  To clarify: Salary increase and health and welfare benefits are currently in  

  negotiation.  Confirmed the budget excludes PERS and STRS but includes Secure Rural  

  Schools.   

  ASQUITH:  Emphasized to the Board and the public that this is the preliminary budget.   

  The final budget will reflect changes as a result of negotiations and Secure Rural Schools  

  funding.  The public comment closed at 6:48 pm.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING-Proposition 30, Education Protection Account 

 

1516-80 The Purpose of the Public Hearing to receive public comment on the use of Proposition 30 

  funding for 2016-2017 opened at 6:48 pm.   

  ASQUITH:  Explained that the majority of the funding is used for the ROP program.  The 

  hearing closed at 6:49 pm without public comment. 

   

1516-81 Authorization for Certificated Employees to participate in up to three Staff Development 

Activities during 2016-17, designed by teachers for teachers pursuant to the provision of 

SB1193, at least six hours in length, to be compensated at the rate of $200 per documented 

Staff Development Activity. (SPTA Collective Bargaining Agreement Article 3.11) 

MOORE/DRYDEN 

4/0 

 

1516-82 Approval of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Wellness Policy 

DRYDEN/MOORE 

  4/0 

 

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS 

 

1516-83 Approval of Exhibit 3312 E, (Added to the agenda in typographical error, therefore 

 removed.) 

 

1516-84 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3515.2, Disruptions 

 

1516-85 Approval of Board Policy 5030, Student Wellness 

 

1516-86 Approval of Board Policy 5146, Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students 

 MOORE motioned for approval of Items 1516-84 through and including 1516-86 

 WRIGHT seconded. 

 4/0 

 

1516-87 First Reading, Board Policy and Exhibit 3515.7, Firearms on School Grounds 

 This board held a discussion reviewing research and the experience of other districts, in 

 and out of California. The board requested additional input from the public, staff and 

 other districts.  There will be a discussion at the June meeting on this issue.  The policy 

 will be set aside and not brought back for a vote at this time.  

  



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 10, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

4 

 

M. ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

 1.   Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on June 14, 2016, at Downieville School, 130 School 

Street, Downieville CA 95936, beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 5 pm and the 

Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm 

 

2.   Suggested Agenda Items   

a. LCAP/Budget 

b. SmartWatt Agreement 

c. Discussion on Legal Firearms on Campus 

 

N. ADJOURNMENT at 7:30 pm. 

 

 WRIGHT/MOORE  

 4/0 

 

 

 

 

 _______________________________  __________________________________ 

Allen Wright, Clerk              Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

  Secretary to the County Board of Education 

 

 

 

*** prior month handout                                                            

 ** enclosed 

   * handout 

      



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2016 through 05/31/2016

Check 

Amount
Pay to the Order of

Check 

Number
Check Date Expensed AmountFund-Object Comment

00014379 05/09/2016 E3 DIAGNOSTICS                ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 01-5810 ANNUAL CALIBRATION OF AUDIOMETER 90.00 

00014380 05/09/2016 CDE                           CASHIER'S OFFICE 01-9590 RETURN UNSPENT FUNDS 14,877.75 

00014381 05/09/2016 STATE OF CALIFORNIA           DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 01-5805 EMPLOYMENT FINGERPRINTING 49.00 

00014382 05/09/2016 LENNIE GARCIA 01-5200 PER DIEM & PARKING 143.97 

00014383 05/09/2016 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 1,470.00 

00014384 05/09/2016 JANE V. LEE, M.A., LMFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,280.00 

00014385 05/09/2016 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 173.87 

00014386 05/09/2016 MARY LOWE, MFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,040.00 

00014387 05/09/2016 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5100 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

5,635.98 

01-5810 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

2,415.42 8,051.40 

00014388 05/09/2016 MIKE MOORE 01-5200 PER DIEM 27.00 

00014389 05/09/2016 CALPERS FINANCIAL REPORTING & ACCOUNTING 

SERVICES-CASHIER

01-5810 GASB 68 FEE 350.00 

00014390 05/09/2016 QUILL CORPORATION 01-4300 PRINTER 107.49 

00014391 05/09/2016 HM RECEIVABLES CO LLC 01-4300 TESTING SUPPLIES 491.86 

00014392 05/09/2016 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 110.29 

00014393 05/09/2016 HANNAH TOMATIS 01-5200 REIMBURSEMENT 643.96 

00014394 05/09/2016 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 MAY 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,506.00 

76-9576 MAY 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 13,182.10 15,688.10 

00014395 05/09/2016 U.S. BANK 01-4300 OFFICE SUPPLIES 23.95 

01-5200 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 263.01 

01-5899 LCAP MEETINGS FOOD 190.28 477.24 

00014396 05/09/2016 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 66.60 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 15.00 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 30.84 112.44 

00014397 05/09/2016 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 6.75 

00014398 05/27/2016 CENTRAL VALLEY SUPPORT SERVICEACCOUNTING 

OFFICE

76-9580 STALE DATED CK#014605 7.50 

Total Number of Checks 20 45,198.62 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

01 County School Service Fund 19 32,009.02 

76 Payroll Clearing 2 13,189.60 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  7 2016  3:47PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2016 through 05/31/2016

Check 

Amount
Pay to the Order of

Check 

Number
Check Date Expensed AmountFund-Object Comment

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 20 45,198.62 

.00 

45,198.62 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  7 2016  3:47PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-007 

 
DECLARATION OF INDEFINITE SALARIES FOR MANAGEMENT, CONFIDENTIAL, 

AND UNPREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES 2016-2017 

 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Education hereby resolves the right to grant to 

those employees who are members of management, confidential, and unrepresented, 
including the superintendent, and as such are not covered by labor contracts, the 
right to salary and benefits improvements.  This resolution would remove any doubt 

that the Board of Education has the right to improve salaries and benefits to non-
represented employees on or after July 1, 2016, and to set the amounts and effective 

date of any such improvements; and   
 
WHEREAS, salaries for management, confidential, and unrepresented employees, 

including the superintendent, can be set at any time during the year pursuant to 
Education Code Section 45032; and 
 

WHEREAS, salaries for management, confidential, and unrepresented employees, 
including the superintendent, is set annually pursuant to Education Code Section 

45162; and 
 
WHEREAS, the California Constitution, Article 11, Section 10 prohibits officers or 

employees from receiving additional compensation for services already rendered 
unless the salaries are deemed “indefinite;” and 

 
THEREFORE, the Sierra County Board of Education deems the salaries for 
management, confidential, and unrepresented employees, including the 

superintendent, be deemed indefinite for the  2016-17 fiscal year; and  
 
BE IT RESOLVED Sierra County Office of Education will notify affected employees by 

copying said resolution of the Board’s intent to keep salaries for management, 
confidential, and unrepresented employees, including the superintendent, indefinite 

for the 2016-17 fiscal year. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sierra County Board of Education on this 14th day of 

June, 2016, by the following votes: 
 
AYES:   

NOES:   
ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  
VACANT:        __________________________ 
           Allen Wright, Clerk 



 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-001 

 
SET SUPERINTENDENT SALARY 

 

 
WHEREAS, the County Superintendent of Schools shall be appointed by the 

Sierra County Board of Education; and 
 
WHEREAS, the California Constitution, Article 9, Section 3.1(b) authorizes the 

County Board to set the County Superintendent’s salary; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code §35034 and §35035 the County 
Superintendent may serve as District Superintendent, chief executive officer and 
secretary of the District Governing Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Superintendent of Schools may serve as both County and 
District Superintendent; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County Superintendent salary will be set at $_________, per 

annum, effective July 1, 2016; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that effective upon being appointed 

County Superintendent of Schools effective July 1, 2016, the Sierra County 
Superintendent of Schools shall be paid $___________ for services July 1, 2016, 

through June 30, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sierra County Board of Education on this 14th 

day of June, 2016, by the following votes: 
 
 

AYES:   
NOES:   

ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
VACANT:   

 
 
 __________________________ 

           Allen Wright, Clerk 
 











































Introduction:

Introduction:

LEA:   Sierra County Office of Education  

Contact:  Merrill Grant, Superintendent mgrant@spjusd.org   530-993-1660 ext *837           LCAP Year:_2016-2017       

Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template

The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template shall be used to provide details regarding local educational 
agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and overall performance pursuant to Education Code sections 52060, 
52066, 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, pursuant to Education Code section 52060, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the 
district, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, 
including pupils with disabilities, for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, pursuant to Education Code section 52066, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in 
Education Code section 52052, including pupils with disabilities, who are funded through the county office of education Local Control Funding 
Formula as identified in Education Code section 2574 (pupils attending juvenile court schools, on probation or parole, or mandatorily expelled) 
for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate 
and describe in their LCAPs services provided to pupils funded by a school district but attending county-operated schools and programs, 
including special education programs.

Charter schools, pursuant to Education Code sections 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5, must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those 
goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, including pupils with disabilities, for each of the 
state priorities as applicable and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities in 
the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the 
statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the Education Code.

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool. Accordingly, in developing goals, specific actions, and expenditures, LEAs should 
carefully consider how to reflect the services and related expenses for their basic instructional program in relationship to the state priorities. 
LEAs may reference and describe actions and expenditures in other plans and funded by a variety of other fund sources when detailing goals, 
actions, and expenditures related to the state and local priorities. LCAPs must be consistent with school plans submitted pursuant to Education 
Code section 64001. The information contained in the LCAP, or annual update, may be supplemented by information contained in other plans

(including the LEA plan pursuant to Section 1112 of Subpart 1 of Part A of Title I of Public Law 107-110) that are incorporated or referenced as 
relevant in this document.  

For each section of the template, LEAs shall comply with instructions and should use the guiding questions as prompts (but not limits) for 
completing the information as required by statute. Guiding questions do not require separate narrative responses. However, the narrative 

1 of 58



response and goals and actions should demonstrate each guiding question was considered during the development of the plan. Data 
referenced in the LCAP must be consistent with the school accountability report card where appropriate. LEAs may resize pages or attach 
additional pages as necessary to facilitate completion of the LCAP.

 

State Priorities

The state priorities listed in Education Code sections 52060 and 52066 can be categorized as specified below for planning purposes, however, 
school districts and county offices of education must address each of the state priorities in their LCAP. Charter schools must address the 
priorities in Education Code section 52060(d) that apply to the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by the charter 
school.

A. Conditions of Learning: 

Basic: degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned pursuant to Education Code section 44258.9, and fully credentialed in the subject 
areas and for the pupils they are teaching; pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials pursuant to Education Code section 
60119; and school facilities are maintained in good repair pursuant to Education Code section 17002(d). (Priority 1)

Implementation of State Standards: implementation of academic content and performance standards and English language development 
standards adopted by the state board for all pupils, including English learners. (Priority 2)

Course access: pupil enrollment in a broad course of study that includes all of the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210 
and subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive, of Section 51220, as applicable. (Priority 7)

Expelled pupils (for county offices of education only): coordination of instruction of expelled pupils pursuant to Education Code section 
48926.  (Priority 9)

Foster youth (for county offices of education only): coordination of services, including working with the county child welfare agency to share 
information, responding to the needs of the juvenile court system, and ensuring transfer of health and education records.  (Priority 10)

 

B. Pupil Outcomes: 

Pupil achievement: performance on standardized tests, score on Academic Performance Index, share of pupils that are college and career 
ready, share of English learners that become English proficient, English learner reclassification rate, share of pupils that pass Advanced 
Placement exams with 3 or higher, share of pupils determined prepared for college by the Early Assessment Program. (Priority 4)

Other pupil outcomes: pupil outcomes in the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210 and subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive, of 
Education Code section 51220, as applicable. (Priority 8)   

C. Engagement: 

Parental involvement: efforts to seek parent input in decision making at the district and each schoolsite, promotion of parent participation in 

2 of 58



programs for unduplicated pupils and special need subgroups.  (Priority 3)

Pupil engagement: school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, middle school dropout rates, high school dropout rates, high school 
graduations rates. (Priority 5)

School climate: pupil suspension rates, pupil expulsion rates, other local measures including surveys of pupils, parents and teachers on the 
sense of safety and school connectedness. (Priority 6)

LEA: Sierra County Office of Education

Contact: Merrill Grant, Superintendent, mgrant@spjusd.org, (530)993-1660

LCAP Year: 2016-17

Local Control and Accountability plan and Annual Update Template

The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template shall be used to provide details regarding local educational 
agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and overall performance pursuant to Education Code sections 52060, 
52066, 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, pursuant to Education Code section 52060, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the 
district, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, 
including pupils with disabilities, for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, pursuant to Education Code section 52066, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in 
Education Code section 52052, including pupils with disabilities, who are funded through the county office of education Local Control Funding 
Formula as identified in Education Code section 2574 (pupils attending juvenile court schools, on probation or parole, or mandatorily expelled) 
for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate 
and describe in their LCAPs services provided to pupils funded by a school district but attending county-operated schools and programs, 
including special education programs.

Charter schools, pursuant to Education Code sections 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5, must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those 
goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, including pupils with disabilities, for each of the 
state priorities as applicable and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities in 
the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the 
statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the Education Code.

3 of 58



The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool. Accordingly, in developing goals, specific actions, and expenditures, LEAs should 
carefully consider how to reflect the services and related expenses for their basic instructional program in relationship to the state priorities. 
LEAs may reference and describe actions and expenditures in other plans and funded by a variety of other fund sources when detailing goals, 
actions, and expenditures related to the state and local priorities. LCAPs must be consistent with school plans submitted pursuant to Education 
Code section 64001. The information contained in the LCAP, or annual update, may be supplemented by information contained in other plans 
(including the LEA plan pursuant to Section 1112 of Subpart 1 of Part A of Title I of Public Law 107-110) that are incorporated or referenced as 
relevant in this document. 

For each section of the template, LEAs shall comply with instructions and should use the guiding questions as prompts (but not limits) for 
completing the information as required by statute. Guiding questions do not require separate narrative responses. However, the narrative 
response and goals and actions should demonstrate each guiding question was considered during the development of the plan. Data 
referenced in the LCAP must be consistent with the school accountability report card where appropriate. LEAs may resize pages or attach 
additional pages as necessary to facilitate completion of the LCAP.

State Priorities
The state priorities listed in Education Code sections 52060 and 52066 can be categorized as specified below for planning purposes, however, 
school districts and county offices of education must address each of the state priorities in their LCAP. Charter schools must address the 
priorities in Education Code section 52060(d) that apply to the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by the charter 
school.

A. Conditions of Learning:

Basic: degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned pursuant to Education Code section 44258.9, and fully credentialed in the subject 
areas and for the pupils they are teaching; pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials pursuant to Education Code section 
60119; and school facilities are maintained in good repair pursuant to Education Code section 17002(d). (Priority 1)

Implementation of State Standards: implementation of academic content and performance standards and English language development 
standards adopted by the state board for all pupils, including English learners. (Priority 2)

Course access: pupil enrollment in a broad course of study that includes all of the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210 and 
subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive, of Section 51220, as applicable. (Priority 7)

Expelled pupils (for county offices of education only): coordination of instruction of expelled pupils pursuant to Education Code section 
48926.  (Priority 9)

4 of 58



Foster youth (for county offices of education only): coordination of services, including working with the county child welfare agency to share 
information, responding to the needs of the juvenile court system, and ensuring transfer of health and education records.  (Priority 10)

B. Pupil Outcomes:

Pupil achievement: performance on standardized tests, score on Academic Performance Index, share of pupils that are college and career 
ready, share of English learners that become English proficient, English learner reclassification rate, share of pupils that pass Advanced 
Placement exams with 3 or higher, share of pupils determined prepared for college by the Early Assessment Program. (Priority 4)

Other pupil outcomes: pupil outcomes in the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210 and subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive, of 
Education Code section 51220, as applicable. (Priority 8)  

C. Engagement:

Parental involvement: efforts to seek parent input in decision making at the district and each schoolsite, promotion of parent participation in 
programs for unduplicated pupils and special need subgroups.  (Priority 3)

Pupil engagement: school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, middle school dropout rates, high school dropout rates, high school 
graduations rates. (Priority 5)

School climate: pupil suspension rates, pupil expulsion rates, other local measures including surveys of pupils, parents and teachers on the 
sense of safety and school connectedness. (Priority 6)

5 of 58



Section 1:  Stakeholder Engagement

Meaningful engagement of parents, pupils, and other stakeholders, including those representing the subgroups identified in Education Code 
section 52052, is critical to the LCAP and budget process. Education Code sections 52060(g), 52062 and 52063 specify the minimum 
requirements for school districts; Education Code sections 52066(g), 52068 and 52069 specify the minimum requirements for county offices of 
education, and Education Code section 47606.5 specifies the minimum requirements for charter schools. In addition, Education Code section 
48985 specifies the requirements for translation of documents.

Instructions:  Describe the process used to consult with parents, pupils, school personnel, local bargaining units as applicable, and the 
community and how this consultation contributed to development of the LCAP or annual update. Note that the LEA’s goals, actions, services 
and expenditures related to the state priority of parental involvement are to be described separately in Section 2.  In the annual update 
boxes, describe the stakeholder involvement process for the review, and describe its impact on, the development of the annual update to 
LCAP goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Guiding Questions:
1)    How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils and unduplicated pupils 

identified in Education Code section 42238.01; community members; local bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare 
agencies; county office of education foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in 
developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP?

2)    How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement in the development of the 
LCAP?

3)    What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders related to the state 
priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was the information made available?

4)    What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other feedback received by the 
LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

5)    What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant to Education Code 
sections 52062, 52068, and 47606.5, including engagement with representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in 
Education Code section 42238.01?

6)    What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7)    How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these stakeholders supported 

improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the state priorities?

Involvement Process Impact on LCAP

6 of 58



An extensive review of documents written with wide stakeholder 
involvement including Single Plans for Student Achievement, WASC 
Reports and annual updates, Local Education Accountability Plans, 
Strategic Plans, Board Goals, and the results of the most recent 
California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) provided the basis for our 
original LCAP goals and actions.

In addition, three Community Forums, one in Downieville, one at 
Loyalton Elementary, and one at Loyalton High School, were held to 
provide opportunities for public feedback.   The Community Forums were 
widely attended by members of the local bargaining units including the 
current officer team.  In addition, parents, teachers, classified staff 
members, and students were present at each of the meetings.  Because 
of our small population, we have opportunities to meet with stakeholders 
throughout the year informally at school and community events.  We 
have stakeholders representing both sides of our county who regularly 
attend monthly board meetings.  These stakeholders include certificated 
and classified staff, parents, students, school administrators, and 
members/officers of the bargaining unit.  School Site Councils are active 
and represent a cross section of our student population; secondary-level 
councils include student representatives.  Other required members of 
Site Councils include teachers, parents, and classified staff.  Efforts are 
made to include representation of student subgroups within Site Council 
membership.  Meetings with foster parents allow for coninued input from 
this subgroup.  Meetings with our Resource Specialist and SELPA 
Director provided feedback regarding services to students with 
disabilities.

A public hearing on our proposed LCAP was held at the May 10, 2016, 
Sierra County Office of Education Board Meeting. As this plan is updated 
and revised, stakeholder involvement will be sought and focused at 
various levels and in multiple communities served by the Sierra County 
Office of Education. 

Stakeholders receive meaningful data through involvement in district 
committees, by request, or through media resources and are provided 
with multiple means of formal and informal communication with the 
county personnel who work on the annual LCAP revisions and updates. 

Foster Youth Stakeholders:  County child welfare and probation 
departments and county office of education foster youth services; current 
and former foster youth; court-appointed education rights holders and 
foster youth caregivers; other advocates and services providers working 

Resource Specialists employed by our County continue to agree that 
LCAP goals are addressing the needs of students who have been 
identified with disabilities. Because of their input we continue to 
address the goal that all students, including those with disabilities, be 
placed in the least restrictive learning environment and the broadest 
course of study available to them while still meeting their learning 
needs. 

Although we have not had any expulsions in recent years, 
discussions regarding the potential need for alternative placements 
for middle school students have led to recognition of the need for an 
alternative program that would be appropriate for students who are 
too young for a traditional continuation school setting.  Site Council 
input continues to impact our LCAP goals through their approval of 
the Single Plans for Student Achievement.  New classroom furniture 
was purchased this year at the recommendation of the students and 
teachers on the Site Councils.  The district has stated that they will 
continue to provide 21st Century learning environments.  
Recommendations from Site Councils also continue to support the 
district’s goal to provide one-to-one computing for Grades 2-12 in 
2015-16.  School grounds and facilities remain on community and 
Site Council lists of needs so the district continues to work on 
maintaining schools that reflect the positive school culture we enjoy in 
our small district. 

Personal contact with our foster parents confirmed that current 
enrollment procedures for parents brining foster children to our 
schools are adequate and that students and parents feel welcomed 
and that students are able to quickly gain access to classrooms and 
servcies.

Coordination of services for foster youth between juvenile courts, 
child welfare agencies, and other public schools has not been an 
issue because we are all well acquainted with each other and have 
continous, close communication as needed.  Our schools are part of 
a system that is in place to maximize sharing of information needed to 
serve the educational needs of foster youth and to minimize changes 
in school placement.

 

 

7 of 58



with foster youth.

Annual Update: 

Annual Update:

Given additional time to prepare for the LCAP, a more focused effort was 
made to gain wider community/county input from a larger stakeholder 
group.  The Superintendent has extended his involvement in a variety of 
city and county organizations expanding his availability to the public and 
welcoming input from a wider population than in previous years.  This 
effort resulted in more coordinated feedback and support for our local 
public schools.  This effort resulted in more coordinated feedback and 
support for Sierra County Office of Education.

The County will continue to support the Community Forums each year to 
obtain input to the LCAP from all stakeholders at each of our school 
sites.  These community forums are well attended and provide a relaxed 
arena in which the public can provide input regarding what they would 
like to see happening at the schools.

Sierra County Health and Human services continues to provide three 
members on the School Attendance Review Board (SARB) to provide for 
ongoing discussions of meeting student needs as they arise.

Administrators at each school site maintain a working relationship with 
the juvenile court system and law enforcement through participation on 
monthly SARB meetings.  The primary goal is to coordinate services for 
district students to allow them to achieve their academic potential.

Annual Update: 

Annual Update:

Spending is focused on support for previous goals and an expansion 
of priorities noted by stakeholder groups such as one-to-one 
technology for grades 2-12, continued funding for updated facilities 
and classroom furnishings, PLC time spent in professional 
development related to the English Language Development state 
standards, increased participation in funding athletic transportation, 
and increased budgeting for student field trips.

In addition to the counseling services being offered by the district 
psychologist, counseling services with contracted counselors from 
Sierra County Mental Health have been added to help with students' 
behavioral and academic support at all school sites.  

This year we have added after school tutoring to be provided by 
credentialed teachers at each school site to help support students' 
academic needs.  The county is also financially supporting a late bus 
to transport those children attending tutoring that live outside of 
walking distance to their home school.

The Sierra County Office of Education provides training to school staff 
and school secretaries to allow for foster children to receive services 
as needed, to enroll quickly into a broad course of study, and to 
receive other services provided by the County as needed to succeed. 
 Services include special education referrals or support, speech 
therapy, occupational therapy, adaptive physical education support, 
and counseling.  There is a coordination of services throughout the 
county including child welfare, the juvenile court system, probation, 
and the schools to provide for foster youth and to support students to 
avoid expulsions.

Section 2:  Goals, Actions, Expenditures, and Progress Indicators

Instructions:

All LEAs must complete the LCAP and Annual Update Template each year.  The LCAP is a three-year plan for the upcoming school year and the 

8 of 58



two years that follow.  In this way, the program and goals contained in the LCAP align with the term of a school district and county office of 
education budget and multiyear budget projections.  The Annual Update section of the template reviews progress made for each stated goal 
in the school year that is coming to a close, assesses the effectiveness of actions and services provided, and describes the changes made in 
the LCAP for the next three years that are based on this review and assessment.

Charter schools may adjust the table below to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is submitted to the school’s authorizer 
pursuant to Education Code section 47604.33.

For school districts, Education Code sections 52060 and 52061, for county offices of education, Education Code sections 52066 and 52067, 
and for charter schools, Education Code section 47606.5 require(s) the LCAP to include a description of the annual goals, for all pupils and 
each subgroup of pupils, to be achieved for each state priority as defined in 5 CCR 15495(i) and any local priorities; a description of the 
specific actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals; a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific actions; and 
an annual update to include a review of progress towards the goals and describe any changes to the goals. 

To facilitate alignment between the LCAP and school plans, the LCAP shall identify and incorporate school-specific goals related to the state 
and local priorities from the school plans submitted pursuant to Education Code section 64001. Furthermore, the LCAP should be shared with, 
and input requested from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, pupil 
advisory groups, etc.) to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or reference 
actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet the goal. 

Using the following instructions and guiding questions, complete a goal table (see below) for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand 
the fields as necessary.

Goal:  Describe the goal:

When completing the goal tables, include goals for all pupils and specific goals for schoolsites and specific subgroups, including pupils 
with disabilities, both at the LEA level and, where applicable, at the schoolsite level.  The LEA may identify which schoolsites and 
subgroups have the same goals, and group and describe those goals together. The LEA may also indicate those goals that are not 
applicable to a specific subgroup or schoolsite.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the 
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, as defined in 5 CCR 15495(i), and any 
additional local priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities.

Identified Need: Describe the need(s) identified by the LEA that this goal addresses, including a description of the supporting data used to 
identify the need(s).

9 of 58



Schools: Identify the schoolsites to which the goal applies. LEAs may indicate “all” for all schools, specify an individual school or a subset of 
schools, or specify grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5).

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Identify the pupil subgroups as defined in Education Code section 52052 to which the goal applies, or indicate 
“all” for all pupils.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes:  For each LCAP year, identify and describe specific expected measurable outcomes for all pupils 
using, at minimum, the applicable required metrics for the related state priorities. Where applicable, include descriptions of specific expected 
measurable outcomes for schoolsites and specific subgroups, including pupils with disabilities, both at the LEA level and at the schoolsite 
level. 

The metrics used to describe the expected measurable outcomes may be quantitative or qualitative, although the goal tables must 
address all required metrics for every state priority in each LCAP year. The required metrics are the specified measures and objectives 
for each state priority as set forth in Education Code sections 52060(d) and 52066(d). For the pupil engagement priority metrics, LEAs 
must calculate the rates specified in Education Code sections 52060(d)(5)(B), (C), (D) and (E) as described in the Local Control 
Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Actions/Services: For each LCAP year, identify all annual actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described goal.  Actions 
may describe a group of services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal.

Scope of Service: Describe the scope of each action/service by identifying the schoolsites covered.  LEAs may indicate “all” for all schools, 
specify an individual school or a subset of schools, or specify grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5).  If supplemental and 
concentration funds are used to support the action/service, the LEA must identify if the scope of service is districtwide, schoolwide, 
countywide, or charterwide.  

Pupils to be served within identified scope of service: For each action/service, identify the pupils to be served within the identified scope of 
service.  If the action to be performed or the service to be provided is for all pupils, place a check mark next to “ALL.”

For each action and/or service to be provided above what is being provided for all pupils, place a check mark next to the applicable 
unduplicated pupil subgroup(s) and/or other pupil subgroup(s) that will benefit from the additional action, and/or will receive the 
additional service. Identify, as applicable, additional actions and services for unduplicated pupil subgroup(s) as defined in Education 
Code section 42238.01, pupils redesignated fluent English proficient, and/or pupils subgroup(s) as defined in Education Code section 
52052.

Budgeted Expenditures: For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement these actions, 

10 of 58



including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. 
Expenditures must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 
47606.5.

Guiding Questions:
1)    What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”?
2)    What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”?
3)    What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement” (e.g., parent involvement, pupil 

engagement, and school climate)?
4)    What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?
5)    How have the unique needs of individual schoolsites been evaluated to inform the development of meaningful district and/or 

individual schoolsite goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level 
plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)?

6)    What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and subgroups as defined in 
section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7)    What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and over the term of the LCAP?
8)    What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop goals to address each state 

or local priority?
9)    What information was considered/reviewed for individual schoolsites?
10)  What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code section 52052?
11)  What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to Education Code section 52052, to 

specific schoolsites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?
12)  How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?
13)  What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can these expenditures be found 

in the LEA's budget?

GOAL:
Foster and expelled students receive instruction and services to support their intellectual, social, 
emotional, and physical development.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: 
_1  _2  _3  X 4  _5  _6  X 7  X 8   COE 
only: X 9  X 10   Local: N/A

11 of 58



Identified Need:
We review each year if we in fact had any expelled students and determine that expelled students need to have alternate 
pathways and services available.  This is an ongoing review.

Each year we review that foster youth are identified and that they are receiving coordination of services between schools, 
schools and local agencies serving foster youth, and schools and the court system.

We review each year with our school registrars to determine if they have adequate training to comply with enrollment of 
foster youth at their schools.

We have reveiwed our staffing and found that our schools need to identify and train an instructional aide as an academic 
mentor/coach to check regularly with foster students regarding their academic progress.

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth, Other (Expelled Students)

LCAP Year 1

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

96% of expelled students will meet their academic needs through alternative pathways.

96% of foster parents will indicate that foster youth are being served appropriately.

92% of school registrars will be trained to meet enrollment and withdrawal requirements of foster youth including efficient 
expeditious transfer of health and education records and the health and education passport.

92% of school administrators will work closely with school secretaries to ensure that requests from the juvenile court and/or 
county child welfare agencies for information regarding delivery and coordination of educational services for foster youth be 
quickly and efficiently communicated between agencies. 

85% of schools will have identified and trained an instructional aide to serve as an academic mentor/coach to foster 
students.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

12 of 58



Continue to support Visual and Performing Arts (VAPA) in 
all schools.  Provide matching funds for Artists in the 
Schools Grant provided through Sierra County Arts 
Council.  Grant funds are used at all school sites except 
Sierra Pass Continuation High School.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$  5,000

Forest Reserve 
Revnue, 
Unrestrict 
Resource 0000

Continue to support Career Technical Education in 
grades 7-12 through employment of Construction/ 
Woodshop teacher and Career Specialist and by funding 
supplies for greenhouses and construction classes.

Downieville 
Jr/Sr High 
School

Loyalton High 
School

Grades: 7th, 
8th, 9th, 10th, 
11th, 12th

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$ 57,000

LCFF Base, 
EPA Resource 
1400

Continue to expand Career Technical Education 
opportunities and pathways by expanding use of 
greenhouses and garden programs to K-12 Science, 
health, and sustainable agriculture projects.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$  7,000

LCFF Base, 
EPA Resource 
1400

Continue to have Foster Youth Service Coordinator 
handle annual staff training and establish a mechanism 
for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and 
education records and the health and education passport.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$  2,000

Foster Youth 
Program, 
Resource 7366

13 of 58



Provide certificated and classified staff for students with 
Individualized Education Programs (IEPs), provide a 
School Psychologist for all students as needed, and 
provide contracted services as needed for students with 
IEPs.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$664,000

Federal 
Resources 
3315 & 
3320,   State 
Spec Ed 
Resource 6500, 
and LCFF Base

LCAP Year 2

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

97% of expelled students will meet their academic needs through alternative pathways.

97% of foster parents will indicate that foster youth are being served appropriately.

94% of school registrars will be trained to meet enrollment and withdrawal requirements of foster youth including efficient 
expeditious transfer of health and education records and the health and education passport.

94% of school administrators will work closely with school secretaries to ensure that requests from the juvenile court and/or 
county child welfare agencies for information regarding delivery and coordination of educational services for foster youth be 
quickly and efficiently communicated between agencies. 

90% of schools will have identified and trained an instructional aide to serve as an academic mentor/coach to foster 
students.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Continue to support Visual and Performing Arts (VAPA) in 
all schools.  Provide matching funds for Artists in the 
Schools Grant provided through Sierra County Arts 
Council.  Grant funds are used at all school sites except 
Sierra Pass Continuation High School.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$  5,000

Forest Reserve 
Revenue, 
Unrestricted 
0000

14 of 58



Continue to support Career Technical Education in 
grades 7-12 through employment of Construction/ 
Woodshop teacher and Career Specialist and by funding 
supplies for greenhouses and construction classes.

Downieville 
Jr/Sr High 
School

Loyalton High 
School

Grades: 7th, 
8th, 9th, 10th, 
11th, 12th

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$ 59,000

LCFF Base 
resource 0000

Continue to expand Career Technical Education 
opportunities and pathways by expanding use of 
greenhouses and garden programs to K-12 Science, 
health, and sustainable agriculture projects.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$  7,000

LCFF Base 
Resource 0000

Continue to have Foster Youth Service Coordinator 
handle annual staff training and establish a mechanism 
for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and 
education records and the health and education passport.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$  2,000

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

Provide certificated and classified staff for students with 
Individualized Education Programs (IEPs), provide a 
School Psychologist for all students as needed, and 
provide contracted services as needed for students with 
IEPs.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$678,000

Federal 
Resources 
3315, 
3320,  State 
Spec Ed 
Resource 6500, 
LCFF Base

15 of 58



LCAP Year 3

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

97% of expelled students will meet their academic needs through alternative pathways.

98% of foster parents will indicate that foster youth are being served appropriately.

95% of school registrars will be trained to meet enrollment and withdrawal requirements of foster youth including efficient 
expeditious transfer of health and education records and the health and education passport.

95% of school administrators will work closely with school secretaries to ensure that requests from the juvenile court and/or 
county child welfare agencies for information regarding delivery and coordination of educational services for foster youth be 
quickly and efficiently communicated between agencies. 

92% of schools will have identified and trained an instructional aide to serve as an academic mentor/coach to foster 
students.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Continue to support Visual and Performing Arts (VAPA) in 
all schools. Provide matching funds for Artists in the 
Schools Grant provided through Sierra County Arts 
Council.  Grant funds are used at all school sites except 
Sierrs Pass Continuation High School.  

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$  5,000

Forest Reserve 
Revenue, 
Unrestricted Re
source 0000

Continue to support Career Technical Education in 
grades 7-12 through employment of 
Construction/Woodshop teacher and Career Speciaist 
and by funding supplies for greenhouses and construction 
classes.

Loyalton High 
School

Downieville 
Junior/Senior 
High School

Grades: 7th, 
8th, 9th, 10th, 
11th, 12th

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$ 59,000

LCFF Base 
Resource 0000

16 of 58



Continue to expand Career Technical Education 
opportunities and pathways by expanding use of 
greenhouses and garden programs to K-12 Science, 
health, and sustainable agriculture projects.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$  7,000

LCFF Base 
Resource 0000

Continue to have Foster Youth Service Coordinator 
handle annual staff training and maintain a mechanism 
for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and 
education records and the health and education passport.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$  2,000

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

Provide certificated and classified staff for students with 
Individualized Education Programs (IEPs), provide a 
School Psychologist for all students as needed, and 
provide contracted services as needed for students with 
IEPs.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$678,000

Federal 
Resources 
3315, 
3320,  State 
Spec Ed 
Resource 6500, 
LCFF Base

17 of 58



GOAL:
Foster and expelled students engage in a rigorous curriculum and acquire the knowledge, critical 
thinking skills, and characteristics needed for success in college, career, and life.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: 
_1  X 2  _3  _4  X 5  X 6  X 7  X 8   
COE only: X 9  _ 10   Local: N/A

Identified Need:
We have reviewed that our foster and expelled students who need intensive intervention in ELA or mathematics are 
getting access to instruction using adopted intervention curriculum.  We have found a need that will deliver these services.

We are constantly reviewing our physical education program to make sure that our foster and expelled students 
are participating in a physical education program that promotes strength and conditioning, is age-appropriate, and meets 
California Education Code guidelines for physical education programs.

We review each year to determine if our foster youth are receiving funding for participation in advanced placement courses, 
athletics, and extra-curricular activities.  This is an ongoing review and need to make sure this is happening.

We review each year the health courses that our foster and expelled students in Kindergarten through Grade 9 are 
receiving and have determined that their is a need for better instruction in health that is aligned with the State Standards 
and County-adopted health curriculum.

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth, Other (Expelled Students)

LCAP Year 1

18 of 58



Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

87% or more of foster students will be in attendance daily, averaged over the year.

87% or more of expelled students will make adequate progress toward graduation in alternative settings.

4% or fewer of students will be expelled during the year.

96% of foster students will demonstrate mastery of the academic skills needed for promotion to the next grade level at the 
end of the year.

87% of foster and expelled students in grades K-9 will receive instruction in health using the adopted curriculum.

85% of foster youth and expelled students will participate in a physical education program.

65% of foster students in grades 9-12 will participate in athletics or extra-curricular activities.

85% of foster and expelled students who need intensive intervention in ELA or mathematics will be enrolled in a qualified 
intervention program.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Professional Learning Community (PLC) activities are 
scheduled in the school calendar.  Certificated staff 
attend professional development programs/conferences.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (Expelled Students)

$  2,500

RSDSS 
Rescouce 3020

19 of 58



Continue to fund instructional aides to work with 
exceptional need students.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (Expelled Students)

$ 69,000

Federal 
Resources 
3310 and 3320, 
 State Special 
Ed Resource 
6500 and 
Foster Youth 
Resource 7366

 

LCAP Year 2

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

90% or more of foster students will be in attendance daily, averaged over the year.

90% or more of expelled students will make adequate progress toward graduation in alternative settings.

3% or fewer of students will be expelled during the year.

97% of foster students will demonstrate mastery of the academic skills needed for promotion to the next grade level at the 
end of the year.

90% of foster and expelled students in grades K-9 will receive instruction in health using the adopted curriculum.

90% of foster youth and expelled students will participate in a physical education program.

70% of foster students in grades 9-12 will participate in athletics or extra-curricular activities.

90% of foster and expelled students who need intensive intervention in ELA or mathematics will be enrolled in a qualified 
intervention program.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

20 of 58



Professional Learning Community (PLC) activities are 
scheduled in the school calendar.  Certificated staff 
attend professional development programs/conferences.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (Expelled Students)

$  2,500

RSDSS 
Rescouce 3020

Continue to fund instructional aides to work with 
exceptional need students.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (Expelled Students)

$ 77,000

Federal 
Resources 
3310 and 3320, 
 State Special 
Ed Resource 
6500 and 
Foster Youth 
Resource 7366

LCAP Year 3

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

90% or more of foster students will be in attendance daily, averaged over the year.

93% or more of expelled students will make adequate progress toward graduation in alternative settings.

2% or fewer of students will be expelled during the year.

97% of foster students will demonstrate mastery of the academic skills needed for promotion to the next grade le8el at the 
end of the year.

93% of foster and expelled students in grades K-9 will receive instruction in health using the adopted curriculum.

93% of foster youth and expelled students will participate in a physical education program.

75% of foster students in grades 9-12 will participate in athletics or extra-curricular activities.

95% of foster and expelled students who need intensive intervention in ELA or mathematics will be enrolled in a qualified 
intervention program.

21 of 58



Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Professional Learning Community (PLC) activities are 
scheduled in the school calendar.  Certificated staff will 
attend professional development programs/conferences.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled Students)

$  2,500

RSDSS 
Rescouce 3020

Continue to fund instructional aides to work with 
exceptional need students.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
_ Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

$ 77,000

Federal 
Resources 
3310 and 3320, 
 State Special 
Ed Resource 
6500 and 
Foster Youth 
Resource 7366

22 of 58



GOAL:
All stakeholders are involved in promoting a district culture where foster youth and expelled 
students realize success and that success is communicated and celebrated.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: 
_1  _2  _3  _4  _5  _6  _7  _8   COE 
only: X 9  X 10   Local: N/A

Identified Need:
We review who our stakeholder representation is and found that we are in need of a broader representation when planning, 
writing, and editing the LCAP. 

We review who our stakeholders are that are actively involved in the school improvement process and in promotion of the 
schools and found that we need a broader stakeholder representation.

In reviewing what our foster youth coordinator is doing in regard to the needs to gather available resources to support the 
county child welfare agency in any way that will minimize changes in school placement of foster youth, we find that we need 
to improve this area.

After reviewing what is happening in regard to whay training is happening with our county staff we found that County staff 
need to be trained each year in California Education Code related to foster youth and expelled students to ensure that 
coordinated services are provided.

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth, Other (Expelled Students)

LCAP Year 1

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

60 stakeholders will attend one of three annual Community Forums to provide input for the LCAP.

96% of County staff will receive training related to coordinated services for foster youth and expelled students and will gain 
information and tools to minimize changes in school placement of foster youth.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

23 of 58



Continue to promote and host Community Forums, 
maintain County website, contract for telecommunications 
equipment and services, and provide for communication 
with stakeholders.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$120,000

LCFF Base 
Resource 0000, 
Forest 
Reserves 
Revenue Unrest
ricted Resource 
0000

LCAP Year 2

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

70 stakeholders will attend one of three annual Community Forums to provide input for the LCAP.

97% of County staff will receive training related to coordinated services for foster youth and expelled students and will gain 
information and tools to minimize changes in school placement of foster youth.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Continue to promote and host Community Forums, 
maintain County website, contract for telecommunications 
equipment and services, and provide for communication 
with stakeholders.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$120,000

LCFF Base 
Resource 0000, 
Forest 
Reserves 
Revenue Unrest
ricted Resource 
0000

LCAP Year 3

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

75 stakeholders will attend one of three annual Community Forums to provide input for the LCAP.

98% of County staff will receive training related to coordinated services for foster youth and expelled students and will gain 
information and tools to minimize changes in school placement of foster youth.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

24 of 58



Continue to promote and host Community Forums, 
maintain County website, contract for telecommunications 
equipment and services, and provide for communication 
with stakeholders.

Al

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

$120,000

LCFF Base 
Resource 0000, 
Forest 
Reserves 
Revenue Unrest
ricted Resource 
0000

25 of 58



GOAL:
The educational outcomes of foster youth will mirror those of the general student population.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: 
_1  _2  _3  X 4  X 5  _6  X 7  X 8   COE 
only: _ 9  _ 10   Local: N/A

Identified Need:
After reviewing how Foster youth suffer from an educational achievement gap due to high school mobility, gaps in 
attendance, higher incidence of trauma and social/emotional issues, and lack of consistent adult involvement in their 
education, we have found a need to better monitor these needs among our Foster youth.

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth

LCAP Year 1

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Gap between foster youth and general student poopulation will decrease by 10% with regard to attendance rates; school 
discipline rates; standardized testing participation rates; standardized test scores; course passage rates with C or higher; A-
G enrollment and passage rates; AP and CTE enrollment and passage rates; dropout rates; graduation rates.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

For foster youth:  Establish policy and data infrastructure 
necessary to support and monitor educational success.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

26 of 58



For Foster Youth:  Allocate funds for tutoring and other 
academic supports; transportation; and costs for sports 
and extracurricular programs.  (Phase in funding as LEA 
moves toward providing school counselor services to 
100% fo foster youth.)

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

Funds for 
transportation 
and priority 
access to 
tutoring, 
enrichment 
programs, 
sports and 
extracurricular 
activities (for at 
least 50% of 
foster youth.)

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

LCAP Year 2

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Gap between foster youth and general student poopulation will decrease by 20% with regard to attendance rates; school 
discipline rates; standardized testing participation rates; standardized test scores; course passage rates with C or higher; A-
G enrollment and passage rates; AP and CTE enrollment and passage rates; dropout rates; graduation rates.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

For foster youth:  Maintain policy and data infrastructure 
necessary to support and monitor educational success.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

27 of 58



For foster youth:  Allocate funds for academic supports 
and remediation; transportation; and costs for sports and 
extracurricular programs.  (Phase in funding as LEA 
moves toward providing counselor support to 100% of 
foster youth.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

Funds for 
transportation 
and priority 
access to 
tutoring, 
enrichment 
programs, 
sports and 
extracurricular 
activities (for at 
least 75% of 
foster youth).

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

For foster youth:  Ensure LEA foster youth liaison (Ed 
Code 48853.5), district level oversight staff, school 
counseling staff have adequate time, knowledge, trauma-
informed training, and resources to meet the needs of 
foster youth as described in Year 1 LCAP.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

LCAP Year 3

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Gap between foster youth and general student poopulation will decrease by 30% with regard to attendance rates; school 
discipline rates; standardized testing participation rates; standardized test scores; course passage rates with C or higher; A-
G enrollment and passage rates; AP and CTE enrollment and passage rates; dropout rates; graduation rates.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

28 of 58



For foster youth:  Maintain policy and data infrastructure 
necessary to support and monitor educational success.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

For foster youth:  Allocate funds for academic supports 
and remediation; transportation; and costs for sports and 
extracurricular programs.  (Phase in funding as LEA 
moves toward providing counselor support to 100% of 
foster youth.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

Funds for 
transportation 
and priority 
access to 
tutoring, 
enrichment 
programs, 
sports and 
extracurricular 
activities (for at 
least 75% of 
foster youth).

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

For foster youth:  Ensure foster youth liaison (Ed Code 
48853.5), district level oversight staff, school counseline 
staff have adequate time, knowledge, trauma-informed 
training, and resources to meet the needs of foster youth 
as described in Year 1 LCAP.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

29 of 58



GOAL:
Decreased transfer of foster youth to continuation and other alternative schools and decreased 
school transfer of foster youth after a change in home placement.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: 
_1  _2  _3  _4  _5  _6  _7  _8   COE 
only: _ 9  X 10   Local: N/A

Identified Need:
After reviewing how school transfers are handled among our Foster youth experiencing a high rate of unnecessary and 
preventable school transfers due to changes in placement and due to transfers from comprehensive schools to alternative 
and continuation schools, we found that we have a need to continually monitor our foster youth and try to prevent the 
unnecessary and preventable school transfers.

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth

LCAP Year 1

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

District will have policies and MOUs regarding reducing foster youth school transfers, the infrastructure necessary to 
measure these metrics, and baseline data on these metrics.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

30 of 58



Develop and implement policy ensuring:

(a)  At the time of any enrollment/disenrollment of a foster 
youth, there is a meaningful consideration of school of 
origin options with the education rights holder and the 
youth.

(b)  District data system tracks types of schools foster 
youth are enrolled in, reasons for enrollment, and how 
many youth remain enrolled in their school of origin after 
a home placement change.

(c)  District staff coordinate with county child welfare and 
probation agenies and COE FYS at time of any home 
placement change to ensure youth are placed within a 
reasonable distance of their school or origin whenever 
possible.

(d)  District allocates sufficient funds to meet 
transportation needs to allow foster youth to remain at 
school of origin.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Funds for 
transportation 
when needed to 
allow foster 
youth to remain 
in school of 
origin.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

LCAP Year 2

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

10% decrease in the foster youth school transfer rate (transfers caused by change in placement and transfers to 
continuation/alternative schools).

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

31 of 58



Monitor implementation of policy described in Year 
1 LCAP and track data on school transfers.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Funds for 
transportation 
when needed to 
allow foster 
youth to remain 
in school of 
origin.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

LCAP Year 3

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

20% decrease in the foster youth school transfer rate (transfers caused by change in placement and transfers to 
continuation/alternative schools).

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Continue to monitor implementation of policy described in 
Year 1 LCAP and track data on school transfers.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

32 of 58



GOAL:
Transferring foster youth will be promptly enrolled in the appropriate school and classes and 
awarded credit for all work completed, including partial credits.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: 
_1  _2  _3  _4  _5  _6  _7  _8   COE 
only: _ 9  X 10   Local: N/A

Identified Need:
Each year we review how we handle transferring foster youth and found that we need to be diligent in reducing the delays in 
enrollment, delayed assignment to appropriate classes, and making sure that they are receiving appropriate partial credits. 
 Training is crucial in this area.

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth

LCAP Year 1

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

District will have policies and MOUs regarding promptly enrolling and awarding partial credit to transferring foster youth, the 
infrastructure necessary to measure these metrics, and baseline data on these metrics.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Develop and implement a policy ensuring:

(a)  Foster youth are immediately enrolled in their local 
comprehensive school unless an education rights holder 
agrees in writing that placement at an alternative school 
site is in the student's best interest, and are enrolled in 
the same/equivalent grade and classes.

(b)  Partial credits are immediately issued and accepted 
when foster youth transfer mid-semester, and the 
district's student information system allows for issuance 
of partial credits.

(c)  The district's data system collects aggregated data on 
the issuance/acceptance of partial credits.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

33 of 58



LCAP Year 2

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

District will have policies and MOUs regarding promptly enrolling and awarding partial credit to transferring foster youth, the 
infrastructure necessary to measure these metrics, and baseline data on these metrics.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Continue to maintain and implement a policy ensuring:

(a)  Foster youth are immediately enrolled in their local 
comprehensive school unless an education rights holder 
agrees in writing that placement at an alternative school 
site is in the student's best interest, and are enrolled in 
the same/equivalent grade and classes.

(b)  Partial credits are immediately issued and accepted 
when foster youth transfer mid-semester, and the 
district's student information system allows for issuance 
of partial credits.

(c)  The district's data system collects aggregated data on 
the issuance/acceptance of partial credits.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

LCAP Year 3

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

District will have policies and MOUs regarding promptly enrolling and awarding partial credit to transferring foster youth, the 
infrastructure necessary to measure these metrics, and baseline data on these metrics.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

34 of 58



Continue and maintain a policy ensuring:

(a)  Foster youth are immediately enrolled in their local 
comprehensive school unless an education rights holder 
agrees in writing that placement at an alternative school 
site is in the student's best interest, and are enrolled in 
the same/equivalent grade and classes.

(b)  Partial credits are immediately issued and accepted 
when foster youth transfer mid-semester, and the 
district's student information system allows for issuance 
of partial credits.

(c)  The district's data system collects aggregated data on 
the issuance/acceptance of partial credits.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

district-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366

35 of 58



GOAL:
Foster youth will receive a comprehensive education assessment and will receive any services or 
supports needed.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: 
_1  _2  _3  _4  _5  _6  _7  _8   COE 
only: _ 9  X 10   Local: N/A

Identified Need:
After reviewing our foster youth population and evaluating how we handle their educational needs we found that because 
Foster Youth, due to high school mobility, often have their educational needs identified and addressed at a lower rate than 
more stable students, we need to put into place a process that addresses the need for assessments to determine 
educational needs. 

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth

LCAP Year 1

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

50% of all foster youth will receive a comprehensive education history and needs assessment and will receive any needed 
services or supports.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

36 of 58



At least 50% of foster youth will receive educational case 
management from a designated counselor with the skills, 
time and training, including in trauma-informed strategies, 
necessary to fully meet the needs of foster youth. Foster 
youth counselors' caseloads should be limited to a 
number consistent with these responsibilities and 
recommended not to exceed 50.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff; 
and sufficient 
school-site-level 
counselors to 
serve at least 
50% of foster 
youth at ratio no 
higher than 
1:50.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366 
Contracted 
Services

LCAP Year 2

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

60% of all foster youth will receive a comprehensive education history and needs assessment and will receive any needed 
services or supports.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

37 of 58



At least 60% of foster youth will receive educational case 
management from a designated counselor with the skills, 
time and training, including in trauma-informed strategies, 
necessary to fully meet the needs of foster youth. Foster 
youth counselors' caseloads should be limited to a 
number consistent with these responsibilities and 
recommended not to exceed 50.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff; 
and sufficient 
school-site-level 
counselors to 
serve at least 
60% of foster 
youth at ratio no 
higher than 
1:50.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366 
Contracted 
Services

LCAP Year 3

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

70% of all foster youth will receive a comprehensive education history and needs assessment and will receive any needed 
services or supports.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

38 of 58



At least 70% of foster youth will receive educational case 
management from a designated counselor with the skills, 
time and training, including in trauma-informed strategies, 
necessary to fully meet the needs of foster youth. Foster 
youth counselors' caseloads should be limited to a 
number consistent with these responsibilities and 
recommended not to exceed 50.

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff; 
and sufficient 
school-site-level 
counselors to 
serve at least 
70% of foster 
youth at ratio no 
higher than 
1:50.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366 
Contracted 
Services

39 of 58



GOAL:
Foster youth will have access to academic and socio/emotional resources and supports on at 
least an equal basis as other students.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: 
_1  _2  _3  X 4  _5  _6  X 7  _8   COE 
only: _ 9  _ 10   Local: N/A

Identified Need:
After reviewing access to academic/socio-emotional resources of our Foster youth we found that we have a need to make 
sure that our Foster youth, due to high school mobility, will have access to academic and socio-emotional resources at the 
same rate as more stable students.

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth

LCAP Year 1

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Foster youth will participate in school-site and district level academic support programs (tutoring, afterschool and summer 
enrichment, etc.), socio-emotional supports (attendance monitoring and support, Positive Behavior Interventions and 
Supports, restorative justice and Social Emotional Learning, school-based health and mental health services, extracurricular 
activities and sports, etc.) at least at the same participation rate as the general student population.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

40 of 58



District-level and school site staff will track participation 
data and work with program staff to ensure foster youth 
have equal access to all academic and socio-emotional 
supports provided to students, including:

(a)  Tutoring & academic enrichment programs

(b)  Summer school/credit recovery

(c)  Academic Counseling

(d)  Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports, 
Restorative Justice, Social Emotional Learning, 
Health/Mental Health Services.

(e)  Sports and other extracurricular activities

(f)  Career pathways and linked learning opportunities

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff; 
Funds for 
transportation 
and priority 
access to 
tutoring 
enrichment 
programs, 
sports and 
extracurricular 
activities.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366 

LCAP Year 2

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Foster youth will participate in school-site and district level academic support programs (tutoring, afterschool and summer 
enrichment, etc.), socio-emotional supports (attendance monitoring and support, Positive Behavior Interventions and 
Supports, restorative justice and Social Emotional Learning, school-based health and mental health services, extracurricular 
activities and sports, etc.) at least at the same participation rate as the general student population.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

41 of 58



District-level and school site staff will track participation 
data and work with program staff to ensure foster youth 
have equal access to all academic and socio-emotional 
supports provided to students, including:

(a)  Tutoring & academic enrichment programs

(b)  Summer school/credit recovery

(c)  Academic Counseling

(d)  Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports, 
Restorative Justice, Social Emotional Learning, 
Health/Mental Health Services.

(e)  Sports and other extracurricular activities

(f)  Career pathways and linked learning opportunities

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff; 
Funds for 
transportation 
and priority 
access to 
tutoring, 
enrichment 
programs, 
sports and 
extracurricular 
activities.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366 

LCAP Year 3

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Foster youth will participate in school-site and district level academic support programs (tutoring, afterschool and summer 
enrichment, etc.), socio-emotional supports (attendance monitoring and support, Positive Behavior Interventions and 
Supports, restorative justice and Social Emotional Learning, school-based health and mental health services, extracurricular 
activities and sports, etc.) at least at the same participation rate as the general student population.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of 
service

Budgeted 
Expenditures

42 of 58



District-level and school site staff will track participation 
data and work with program staff to ensure foster youth 
have equal access to all academic and socio-emotional 
supports provided to students, including:

(a)  Tutoring & academic enrichment programs

(b)  Summer school/credit recovery

(c)  Academic Counseling

(d)  Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports, 
Restorative Justice, Social Emotional Learning, 
Health/Mental Health Services.

(e)  Sports and other extracurricular activities

(f)  Career pathways and linked learning opportunities

All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More 
Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent 
English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or 
African American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students 
with Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_ Other

District-level 
liaison and 
oversight staff; 
Funds for 
transportation 
and priority 
access to 
tutoring, 
enrichment 
programs, 
sports and 
extracurricular 
activities.

Foster Youth 
Grant Resource 
7366 

43 of 58



Annual Update

Annual Update Instructions:  For each goal in the prior year LCAP, review the progress toward the expected annual outcome(s) based on, at a minimum, the 
required metrics pursuant to Education Code sections 52060 and 52066. The review must include an assessment of the effectiveness of the specific actions.  
Describe any changes to the actions or goals the LEA will take as a result of the review and assessment. In addition, review the applicability of each goal in 
the LCAP.

Guiding Questions:

1)    How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those services result in the desired outcomes?
2)    How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to Education Code section 52052, including, 

but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?

3)    How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific schoolsites and were these actions/services effective in 
achieving the desired outcomes?

4)    What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress toward goals in the annual update?
5)    What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How effective were the actions and services in 

making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the 
review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?

6)    What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? What were the reasons for any 
differences?

Original Goal 
from prior year 

LCAP:
Foster and expelled students receive instruction and services to support their 
intellectual, social, emotional, and physical development.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: X 
1  X 2  X 3  X 4  X 5  X 6  X 7  X 8   
COE only: X 9  X 10   Local: 

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

44 of 58



Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth, Other (Expelled Students)

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

95% of expelled students will meet their academic 
needs through alternative pathways.

95% of foster parents will indicate that foster youth 
are being served appropriately.

90% of school registrars will be trained to meet 
enrollment and withdrawal requirements of foster 
youth including efficient expeditious transfer of health 
and education records and the health and education 
passport.

90% of school administrators will work closely with 
school secretaries to ensure that requests from the 
juvenile court and/or county child welfare agencies 
for information regarding delivery and coordination of 
educational services for foster youth be quickly and 
efficiently communicated between agencies. 

80% of schools will have identified and trained an 
instructional aide to serve as an academic 
mentor/coach to foster students.

Actual Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

0% expelled students

95% of foster parents indicated that foster youth are 
being served appropriately.

95% of school registrars were trained to meet 
enrollment and withdrawal requirements of foster 
youth including efficient expeditious transfer of health 
and education records and the health and education 
passport.

90% of school administrators work closely with 
school secretaries to ensure that requests from the 
juvenile court and/or county child welfare agencies 
for information regarding delivery and coordination of 
educational services for foster youth be quickly and 
efficiently communicated between agencies.

80% of schools have identified and trained an 
instructional aide to serve as an academic 
mentor/coach to foster students.

LCAP Year: 2015-16

Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Estimated 
Actual Annual 
Expenditures

Continue to support Visual and Performing Arts (VAPA) in 
all schools.  Provide matching funds for Artists in the 
Schools Grant provided through Sierra County Arts 
Council.  Grant funds are used at all school sites except 
Sierra Pass Continuation High School.

$  5,000 The district continues to support Visual and 
Performing Arts (VAPA) in all schools.  

$  5,000

Forest Reserve 
Revenue, 
Unrestricted 
0000

45 of 58



Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low 
Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent English 
proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

X All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
_ Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska Native  _ Hispanic or 
Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated 
fluent English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_Other

Continue to support Career Technical Education in grades 
7-12 through employment of Construction/ Woodshop 
teacher and Career Specialist and by funding supplies for 
greenhouses and construction classes.

$ 55,000 The district continues to expand Career Technical 
Education opportunities and pathways by expanding 
use of greenhouses and garden program to K-12 
Science, health, and sustainable agriculture 
projects.  All school sites have greenhouses and/or 
gardens that the students work in daily.

$  6,000

LCFF 
base Resource 
(EPA) 1400

Scope of 
service: Downieville Jr/Sr High School

Loyalton High School

Grades: 7th, 8th, 9th, 10th, 11th, 12th

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low 
Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent English 
proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

X All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
_ Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska Native  _ Hispanic or 
Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated 
fluent English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_Other

46 of 58



Continue to expand Career Technical Education 
opportunities and pathways by expanding use of 
greenhouses and garden programs to K-12 Science, 
health, and sustainable agriculture 

$  6,000 District continues to support Career Technical 
Education in grades 7-12 throug employment of 
Construction/Woodshop eacher and Career 
Specialist and by funding supplies for greenhouses 
and construction.  We increased our part-time shop 
teacher at LHS to full-time.

$  55,000

LCFF 
base, (EPA) 
1400

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

Scope of 
service: Loyalton High School

Downieville Junior/Senior High 
School

Grades: 7th, 8th, 9th, 10th, 11th, 
12th

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low 
Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent English 
proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

X All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
_ Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska Native  _ Hispanic or 
Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated 
fluent English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_Other

Continue to have Foster Youth Service Coordinator 
handle annual staff training and establish a mechanism 
for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and 
education records and the health and education passport.

$  2,000 Our newly appointed district-level liaison for foster 
youth will continue to handle annual staff training 
and establish a mechanism for the efficient 
expeditious transfer of health and education records 
and the health and education passport.

$  2,000

Foster Youth 
Grant, 
 Resource 7366

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

47 of 58



_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low 
Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent English 
proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska Native  _ Hispanic or 
Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated 
fluent English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_Other

Provide certificated and classified staff for students with 
Individualized Education Programs (IEPs), provide a 
School Psychologist for all students as needed, and 
provide contracted services as needed for students with 
IEPs.

$591,000 Provided certificated and classified staff for students 
with Individualized Education Programs (IEPs), 
provided a school psychologist for all students as 
needed, and provide contracted services as needed 
for students with IEPs.

$591,000

Federal 
Resources 
3315 & 
3320,   State 
Spec Ed 
Resource 6500, 
and LCFF Base

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low 
Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent English 
proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (expelled students)

X All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
_ Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska Native  _ Hispanic or 
Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated 
fluent English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_Other

48 of 58



What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures One of the changes that we made this year is that our district/county administrative assistant has been assigned 

the role of district-level liaison for foster youth.  She has attended trainings to learn the policies for foster youth 
requirements related to their education.  She has held meetings with key personnel to ensure that foster youth 
are obtaining the best education and services that are needed.  The changes that will be made based on our 
review of this goal will be that she will continue to train school secretaries and support staff in all areas that affect 
foster youth in our district.  This change will be very effective because the county will now have a better 
understanding of the needs of our foster youth and our staff will be better trained to guarantee that the needs of 
all foster youth coming into our school system will be addressed immediately.  

Original Goal 
from prior year 

LCAP:
Foster and expelled students engage in a rigorous curriculum and acquire the 
knowledge, critical thinking skills, and characteristics needed for success in college, 
career, and life.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: X 
1  X 2  X 3  X 4  X 5  X 6  X 7  X 8   
COE only: X 9  X 10   Local: 

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth, Other (Expelled Students)

49 of 58



Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

85% or more of foster students will be in attendance 
daily, averaged over the year.

85% or more of expelled students will make 
adequate progress toward graduation in alternative 
settings.

5% or fewer of students will be expelled during the 
year.

95% of foster students will demonstrate mastery of 
the academic skills needed for promotion to the next 
grade level at the end of the year.

85% of foster and expelled students in grades K-9 
will receive instruction in health using the adopted 
curriculum.

80% of foster youth and expelled students will 
participate in a physical education program.

60% of foster students in grades 9-12 will participate 
in athletics or extra-curricular activities.

80% of foster and expelled students who need 
intensive intervention in ELA or mathematics will be 
enrolled in a qualified intervention program.

Actual Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

90% or more of foster students were in attendance 
daily, averaged over the year.

0% students were expelled

0% students were expelled

95% of foster students are demonstrating mastery of 
the academic skills needed for promotion to the next 
grade level at the end of the year.

Our health curriculum was not used this year.

100% of our foster youth participate in a physical 
education program.

We had no foster youth students in grades 9-12 this 
year.

100% of foster students who need intensive 
intervention in ELA or mathematics were enrolled in 
a qualified intervention program.

50 of 58



LCAP Year: 2015-16

Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Estimated 
Actual Annual 
Expenditures

Professional Learning Community (PLC) activities are 
scheduled in the school calendar.  Certificated staff attend 
professional development programs/conferences.

$  2,500 The district continues to calendar professional 
learning community (PLC) activities into our 
calendar.  Certificated staff attend professional 
development programs/conferences.

$  6,788

RSDSS 
Rescouce 3020

 

 

Scope of 
service: Al

Grades: All

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low 
Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent English 
proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (Expelled Students)

X All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
_ Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska Native  _ Hispanic or 
Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated 
fluent English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_Other

Continue to fund instructional aides to work with 
exceptional need students.

$ 68,000 The district continues to fund instructional aides to 
work with exceptional students.

$ 68,000

Federal/State 
Special Ed

Resources: 
 3315,3320, & 
 6500

51 of 58



Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low 
Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent English 
proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (Expelled Students)

X All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
_ Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska Native  _ Hispanic or 
Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated 
fluent English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_Other

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures Because we have such a low number of foster youth in our district and we have had no expelled students for 

several years, we will continue to serve the foster youth as we have in the past to ensure that they get the 
services they need to be successful at school.  Having a trained person to oversee our foster youth population 
has been very effective this past school year. We will continue to support this person so that she can continue to 
be trained in foster youth needs and will also train key personnel that deal with our foster youth daily.  Because 
we have been successful in not having expelled students in our district, we will continue to support our students 
in all areas of their education to maintain our 0% of expelled students.  

52 of 58



Original Goal 
from prior year 

LCAP:
All stakeholders are involved in promoting a district culture where foster youth and 
expelled students realize success and that success is communicated and celebrated.

Related State and/or Local Priorities: X 
1  X 2  X 3  X 4  X 5  X 6  X 7  X 8   
COE only: X 9  X 10   Local: 

Goal Applies to: Schools:
All

Grades: All

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Foster Youth, Other (Expelled Students)

Expected Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

50 stakeholders will attend one of three annual 
Community Forums to provide input for the LCAP.

95% of County staff will receive training related to 
coordinated services for foster youth and expelled 
students and will gain information and tools to 
minimize changes in school placement of foster 
youth.

Actual Annual 
Measurable 
Outcomes:

About 70 stakeholders attended one of three of our 
annual Community Forums to provide input for the 
LCAP.

Training has just begun with the assignment of our 
District-level foster youth liaison.  

LCAP Year: 2015-16

Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted 
Expenditures

Estimated 
Actual Annual 
Expenditures

Continue to promote and host Community Forums, 
maintain County website, contract for telecommunications 
equipment and services, and provide for communication 
with stakeholders.

$120,000 The district continues to host Community Forums at 
all 3 school sites, we are maintaining the county 
website, contracted for telecommunications 
equipment and services, and provide for 
communication with stakeholders.

$120,000

LCFF Base, 
Forest 
Reserves 
Revenue 

Resource: 0000

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

Scope of 
service: All

Grades: All

53 of 58



_ All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
X Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska 
Native  _ Hispanic or Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low 
Income Pupils  _ Redesignated fluent English 
proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
X Other (Expelled Students)

X All  
---------------------------------------------------------------------
_ Foster Youth  _ American Indian or Alaska Native  _ Hispanic or 
Latino  _ Two or More Races  _ Low Income Pupils  _ Redesignated 
fluent English proficient  _ Asian  _ Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  _ English Learners  _ Black or African 
American  _ Filipino  _ White  _ Students with 
Disabilities  _ Homeless  
_Other

54 of 58



What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures The community forums that are held each year are a very informal and well attended and are an effective way to 

gather input from stakeholders regarding what they would like to see in our schools.  The district will continue to 
hold these community forums at each school site each year to discuss the LCAP and the state of the schools. 
 We are a small community and therefore have opportunities to meet informally with stakeholders at school 
functions and community activities.  Our District-level foster youth liaison was very effective in the training of 
appropriate school staff in the regulations for foster youth.

55 of 58



Section 3: Use of Supplemental and Concentration Grant funds and Proportionality
A.    In the box below, identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration of low 
         income, foster youth, and English learner pupils as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a)(5).

Describe how the LEA is expending these funds in the LCAP year. Include a description of, and justification for, the use of any funds in a 
districtwide, schoolwide, countywide, or charterwide manner as specified in 5 CCR 15496.

For school districts with below 55 percent of enrollment of unduplicated pupils in the district or below 40 percent of enrollment of 
unduplicated pupils at a schoolsite in the LCAP year, when using supplemental and concentration funds in a districtwide or schoolwide 
manner, the school district must additionally describe how the services provided are the most effective use of funds to meet the 
district’s goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priority areas.  (See 5 CCR 15496(b) for guidance.)

Total amount of Supplemental and Concentration grant funds calculated: 0

Sierra County has no students.  Sierra County funds are used to support students enrolled in Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District.  Sierra 
County Office of Education ensures that all foster youth and expelled students benefit from a coordination of services to meet their needs.

 

B.    In the box below, identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the
        services provided to all pupils in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, demonstrate how the services provided in the LCAP year for low income pupils, 
foster youth, and English learners provide for increased or improved services for these pupils in proportion to the increase in funding 
provided for such pupils in that year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a)(7). An LEA shall describe how the proportionality 
percentage is met using a quantitative and/or qualitative description of the increased and/or improved services for unduplicated 
pupils as compared to the services provided to all pupils.

0.00   %

56 of 58



Because there are no students enrolled in Sierra County, services are provided through Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District.  Sierra 
County provides services to students that would otherwise be unavailable.  Sierra County provides Resource Specialists, the SELPA Director, a 
Speech Therapist, and the School Psychologist.  Sierra County also funds some of the Career Technical Education programs.  These services 
and programs serve students with special needs as well as all students who may access the programs supported by the county.  These 
programs promote a higher graduation rate and lower truancy rate.  All foster youth and expelled students will benefit from a coordination of 
services to meet their needs.

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN AND ANNUAL UPDATE APPENDIX

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 52060 and 52066, the 
following shall apply:

(a)  “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1)  The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 30) who are 
chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school 
year when the total number of days a pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was 
actually taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular day schools of the 
district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(2)  The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 
30).

(3)  Divide (1) by (2).

(b)  “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, section 1039.1.
 

(c)  “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1)  The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-
time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during 
school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2)  The total number of cohort members.

(3)  Divide (1) by (2).

(d)  “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

57 of 58



(1)  The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult education high school diploma or 
passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number 
of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die 
during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2)  The total number of cohort members.

(3)  Divide (1) by (2).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was suspended during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 
30).

(3)  Divide (1) by (2).

(f)  “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1)  The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30).

(2)  The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 
30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

58 of 58



Sierra County Office of Education 
2016-2017 Budget Narrative 

Presented June 14, 2016 

 

General Fund 

 

 

 

 

LCFF Sources; 
$809,945 ; 41%

Federal ; 153,098; 
8%

Other State; 
681,907; 35%

Other Local; 
298,699; 15%

Fund 16 - Transfer In; 
13,360; 1%

Total Resources $1,957,009

LCFF Sources

Federal

Other State

Other Local

Fund 16 -
Transfer In

Certificated; 
473,679; 26%

Classified; 359,965; 
19%

Benefits; 317,479; 
17%

Books & Supplies; 
43,164; 2%

Services & 
Operating; 579,970; 

31%

Capital Outlay; 
60,332; 3%

Outgo to District; 
27,582 ; 2%

Total Expenses  $1,862,171

Certificated

Classified

Benefits

Books & Supplies

Services & Operating

Capital Outlay

Outgo to District



    

SCOE 2016-2017 Budget Narrative 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 

2012-13 $1,974,523 actuals 

2013-14 $2,061,912 actuals 

2014-15 $2,305,842 actuals 

2015-16 $2,530,191projected 

2016-17 $2,625,029 projected 

 

Personnel  FTE 

Certificated  2.90 

Superintendent    .15 

SELPA Director   .60 

Classified  3.85 

Confidential  2.90 

 

Comments 

 

1. No COLA on State funding sources 

2. No salary increase for employees 

3. Certificated health and welfare (H/W) cost of $2,000, all other employees H/W is capped. H/W 

cost is $154,000 

4. PERS rate increase from  11.847% to 13.888%, total cost of $56,611 

5. STRS rate increase from 10.73% to 12.58%. total cost of $60,937 

6. Reimburse Sierra-Plumas JUSD to provide foster youth, business, curriculum, and technology 

services 

7. Secure Rural Schools and Community Act has not been reauthorize.  Forest Reserve Revenue 

budget is $13,860 

 
 

 

 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2012-13 actuals 48,594   

2013-14 actuals 87,389 

2014-15 actuals 243,930 

2015-16 projected 224,349 

2016-17 projected 94,838 














































































































































	01_06_14_16_SCOE_AGENDA.pdf
	2_Positive Cert from State.pdf
	2_SCOE May2016 ObjSumm.pdf
	3_5-10-16 SCOE Minutes.pdf
	4_SCOE May2016 Checks.pdf
	5_15-007_Declaration of Indefinite Salaries 2016-17.pdf
	6_16-001_SetSupeSal_2016-17.pdf
	7_2015-16__Current_SupeSal_.pdf
	8_SELPA_Budget_Service Plan.pdf
	9_SCOE_LCAP-2016-17.pdf
	10_SCOE 2016-2017 Budget Narrative.pdf
	11_SCOE_Budget Proposed 2016-17.pdf

